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1.

	2011
	Home Rule
	Unionism
	Labour
	

	2010
	Home Rule (Partial)
	Unionism
	Labour
	Land (Partial)

	2009
	Home Rule
	Unionism
	Labour
	Land

	2008
	Home Rule (Partial)
	Unionism (Partial)
	Labour
	Land


2. Questions per category.

(a) Land

1. To what extent did the land agitation of the period, 1870-1914, lead to land reform?  (2008)

2.  What was the contribution of Michael Davitt to social and political reform? (2007)

3. What did Charles Stewart Parnell contribute to land reform and to the development of the Home Rule movement?   (2010)     

(b) Home Rule

1. In the period to 1914, who was the more effective leader, John Redmond or Edward Carson? Argue your case, referring to both leaders.   (2008)
2 Who was the more effective leader of the Home Rule movement, Butt or Parnell? Argue your case, referring to both. (2009)
3. What did Charles Stewart Parnell contribute to land reform and to the development of the Home Rule movement?       (2010)

4. What attempts were made to gain Home Rule, 1870-1886, and why were those  attempts unsuccessful? (2011)
(c) Unionism

1. In the period to 1914, who was the more effective leader, John Redmond or Edward Carson? Argue your case, referring to both leaders.   (2008)
2.  How successful was Edward Carson as a leader of Unionism?   (2010) 

3. What developments took place in Ulster Unionism or in the industrialisation of Belfast, 1870-1914?          (2009) 
4. How did Unionism develop during the period 1886-1914? (2011)

(d) Labour

1. What were the problems facing Ireland’s urban poor and what attempts were made to solve them in the period to 1914? (2008)
2.  To what extent was the Dublin strike and lockout, 1913, a success or a failure? (2009)

3. What were the main social and economic developments in Belfast and/or Dublin  during the period 1870-1914?        (2010) 
4.  How effectively did James Larkin seek improvements for   workers?   (2011)
3.  Past questions 

2008

1. To what extent did the land agitation of the period, 1870-1914, lead to land reform?  
 2.  What were the problems facing Ireland’s urban poor and what attempts were made to solve them in the period to 1914? 
3. What did one or more of the following contribute to the cultural revivals of the period 1870-1914: the GAA; the Gaelic League; W. B. Yeats? 
4. In the period to 1914, who was the more effective leader, John Redmond or  Edward Carson? Argue your case, referring to both leaders.   
2009

1. Who was the more effective leader of the Home Rule movement, Butt or Parnell? Argue your case, referring to both. 
2.  To what extent was the Dublin strike and lockout, 1913, a success or a failure? 
3. What was the contribution of Michael Davitt to social and political reform? 
4. What developments took place in Ulster Unionism or in the industrialisation of Belfast, 1870-1914? 
2010

1. What did Charles Stewart Parnell contribute to land reform and to the

   development of the Home Rule movement? 
2. What were the main social and economic developments in Belfast and/or Dublin during the period 1870-1914? 
3. Which organisation was more effective, the GAA or the Gaelic League? Argue your case, referring to both. 
4. How successful was Edward Carson as a leader of Unionism?   (100) 

2011

1. What attempts were made to gain Home Rule, 1870-1886, and why were those attempts unsuccessful? 
2. How did Unionism develop during the period 1886-1914? 
3. What did Douglas Hyde and/or W.B. Yeats contribute to cultural life in Ireland? 
4. How effectively did James Larkin seek improvements for workers? 
UNIONISM

1 Questions

1. In the period to 1914, who was the more effective leader, John Redmond or  Edward Carson? Argue your case, referring to both leaders. (2008)

2.  How successful was Edward Carson as a leader of Unionism? (2010) 

3. What developments took place in Ulster Unionism or in the industrialisation of Belfast, 1870-1914?  (2009) 

4. How did Unionism develop during the period 1886-1914? (2011)

2. Possible Points.

(a) How did Unionism develop during the period 1886-1914? (2011) / What developments took place in Ulster Unionism (or in the industrialisation of Belfast,) 1870-1914?  (2009)

·  Unionism developed out of an opposition to the potential dismemberment of the Union for three main reasons; economic, religious and political.

· Unionists feared a Catholic dominated Home Rule Parliament because (a) They would be a religious minority


  (b) They feared ‘Rome Rule’.

            (c) They were aware of the history of violent sectarian strife since 


      

1690.

·  Economically Unionists feared Home Rule because

 (a) The northeast, where most Unionists were situated, was the only 

       successful economic region on the island and so the burden of financing a Home Rule state would fall disproportionately on them.

 (b) The economic success of the region was dependant on close ties      
        with the United Kingdom for raw materials and markets.

·  Politically, Unionists feared Home Rule because

          (a) Their historical loyalty was to the crown.

 (b) Their political power had been weakened by the Secret Ballot Act 
      (1872)  and Reform Act (1884)

       (c) They perceived their political power to be linked to their espousal of their religious freedom, so an attack on one was automatically an attack on the other. (The so called Siege Mentality)
Point The fundamental objections outlined above galvanized the Unionists to organize and oppose the increasing threat of Home Rule from 1886 through to 1892 and eventually 1912. This happened through a number of phases.

Phase 1

·  The foundation of the The Irish Loyal and Patriotic Union (1885)

·  The election of 2 Unionist M.Ps for Trinity College Dublin and 16 M.P.s in Ulster in the 1885 General election.
·   The foundation of the Ulster Loyalist Anti Repeal Union (1886)

·  The revitalization of the Orange Order to unite Protestants of all classes in opposition to Home Rule.
·  Unionists allied themselves to the Conservative Party and to pro Unionists Liberals  eventually becoming the Conservative and Unionist Party prompted by Sir Randolf Churchill’s advice, ‘The Orange Card is the one to play’.

·  The Ulster Defence Union was set up by Edward Saunderson (MP for North Armagh) to collect money for the opposition to Home Rule campaign.
·  This loose alliance waned after the failure of the Home Rule Bills of 1886 and 1892 and the ascendancy of the Conservatives to power in the U.K.
Phase 2

·  With the return of the Liberals in the 1900s, came the return of the possibility of Home Rule and with it the revival of the Unionist opposition.
·   Unionists opposed the Devolution Plan in 1904-1905.
·   Unionists formed The Ulster Unionist Council in 1905 as a coordination body for Unionist opposition.
·   In 1905, The Ulster Unionist Party (The Unionist Party) was founded by Edward Saunderson (MP for North Armagh).
·   Unionists opposed the Council Bill a measure similar The Devolution Plan.

·  The Ulster Unionist Council worked closely with the Irish Unionist Alliance, mainly Southern Unionists to oppose the various measures to introduce Home Rule.
Phase 3

·  Unionists took a more belligerent stance with the passing of the Parliament Act (1911) which reduced the power of the House of Lords and with the introduction of the Home Rule Bill 1912.

·  Sir Edward Carson now leader of the Unionist Party and James Craig  suggested setting up an alternative Unionist government in the event of the passage of the Home Rule Bill.
·   The Ulster Unionist Council drafted a constitution.

·   Drilling was organized in Ulster on the basis that it was legal in defence of the constitution of the U.K. if authorized by two Justices of the Peace.
·   In 1912, 400,000 Ulstermen signed the Ulster Solemn League and Covenant and pledged  to fight by all means that may be found necessary the imposition of Home Rule.
·   Unionists secured the support of Andrew Bonar Law, Conservative Party,-I can imagine no length of resistance to which Ulster will go which I will not be ready to support.
·   The Ulster Unionist Council founded the Ulster Volunteer Force (UVF) headed by Sir George Richardson, a retired British Army general.

·  Guns and ammunition were imported through Larne, Bangor and Donaghadee  and distributed to the UVF.

Phase 4

·  In the negotiations which followed the passage of the Act and before its implementation Carson and the Unionists rejected the idea of temporary or permanent exclusion of Ulster from the Act.
·   Carson also rejected the idea of ‘Home Rule within Home Rule’.  Carson was firmly against any settlement which was based on partition.

·  Craig and many Unionists were in favour of partition if all else failed.
·   Unionists attended the Buckingham Palace Conference called by King George V in July of 1914 but failed to agree on any of the proposals and the conference broke up.
·   Home Rule became law on September 18th, 1914 and Unionists agreed to accept it provided it did not operate until the war ended. The Ulster Question was put in abeyance.
(b) How successful was Edward Carson as a leader of Unionism? (2010)

· Edward Carson, Protestant, born Dublin, a barrister was a unionist from 1886 when he opposed the Home Rule Bill. He was government prosecutor during the Plan of Campaign, was both Solicitor General for Ireland and later Solicitor General for England. Was elected M.P.  for Trinity College on the anti home Rule ticket in  1892 and became leader of the Unionist Party  in 1910.
· Carson campaigned against the Third Home Rule bill in the House of Commons as well as advocating, in a meeting in Belfast, that Unionists set up their own government in the event of the passage of the Home Rule bill,

· He was part of The Ulster Unionist Council that drafted a constitution.

·  He advocated Drilling in Ulster on the basis that it was legal in defence of the constitution of the U.K. if authorized by two Justices of the Peace.
·  He organized, in 1912, Ulster Solemn League and Covenant and pledged  to fight by all means that may be found necessary the imposition of Home Rule. It was signed by 400,000 Ulstermen 

· He was party to securing the support of Andrew Bonar Law, Conservative Party,-I can imagine no length of resistance to which Ulster will go which I will not be ready to support.
·  He was involved in The Ulster Unionist Council and its foundation of the Ulster Volunteer Force (UVF)  headed by Sir George Richardson, a retired British Army general.

·  With Craig he organised the importation of guns and ammunition which were imported through Larne, Bangor and Donaghadee  and distributed to the UVF.

· In the negotiations which followed the passage of the Act and before its implementation Carson and the Unionists rejected the idea of temporary or permanent exclusion of Ulster from the Act.
·   Carson also rejected the idea of ‘Home Rule within Home Rule’.  Carson was firmly against any settlement which was based on partition. 

·  Craig and many Unionists were in favour of partition if all else failed.
·   Carson and the Unionists attended the Buckingham Palace Conference called by King George V in July of 1914 but failed to agree on any of the proposals and the conference broke up.
·   Home Rule became law on September 18th, 1914 and Carson agreed to accept it provided it did not operate until the war ended. The Ulster Question was put in abeyance.
· Carson pledged Unionist support for the war effort and actively encouraged members of the UVF to join the British Army. He did this out of a sense of loyalty and because he felt that such an action would influence the government in a decision about Home Rule.

· He served in the British government as Attorney General partly because he felt that by working closely with British politicians of every party, he could best promote the Unionist cause.

Success?
· Carson’s strength was to be able to keep the Unionists united in their opposition and to refuse to compromise on temporary or permanent exclusion and Home Rule within Home Rule. 

·  Carson was not afraid to threaten the ruin of the Home Rule Bill by illegal means, such as the setting up of a proposed alternative government, or by the force of arms, to effectively threaten civil war.

·  Carson was fortunate in that his cause won the support of a large section of the British establishment, in particular the Conservative Party, which he used effectively (see Curragh Mutiny).
·  Carson saw the advantage of being able to influence British politicians through his participation in the War Cabinet.

· Carson failed in that he did not succeed in keeping Ireland tied to the Union but he did play a huge role in preventing Home Rule and, although he was disappointed in it , the creation of the Protestant Unionist dominated state of Northern Ireland.
(c) In the period to 1914, who was the more effective leader, John Redmond or  Edward Carson? Argue your case, referring to both leaders. (2008)

· See above for relevant points on Edward Carson.

·  John Redmond was elected chairman of the newly united Home Rule party in February 1900. He was a compromise candidate acceptable to both sides. Some historians suggest that it was his acceptability to both sides of the party that made him tolerable rather than any overt leadership qualities.

·  The Home Rule Party held the balance of power after the 1910 election and Redmond pledged their support to Herbert Asquith and the Liberal party in return for Home Rule.

· 
It was after the passage of the Home Rule Bill that Redmond’s leadership qualities came under scrutiny. In the discussions about temporary or permanent exclusion of Ulster from the Act, Redmond was opposed to any form of partition but he was willing to accept ‘Home Rule within Home Rule’. He also attended, with John Dillon, the Buckingham Conference which broke up without agreement.

·   Redmond’s control of the Home Rule movement was compromised by the setting up of the Irish National Volunteers by Eoin Mac Neill who was elected commander. This group proceeded to copy the UVF by drilling and importing arms through Howth in Co, Dublin. (Compare with Carson’s leadership role in the UVF).

·  Carson’s advocacy of the UVF joining the British Army took the initiative from Redmond. He was forced into a similar maneuver in Woodenbridge, Co. Wicklow. This caused a split in the Volunteer movement the majority National Volunteers acceding to Redmond’s request. A minority, about 10,000, resisted Redmond’s attempts to wrest control of the Volunteers and choose to remain as the Irish Volunteers and remain at home to act as a pressure movement for the imposition of the Home Rule bill.
·   Redmond choose not to involve the Home Rule Party in the British War cabinet in contrast to Carson and the Unionists maintaining that the Home Rule Party should remain in independent opposition.

Discussion.

· Carson was able to keep the Unionists united in their opposition and refused to compromise on temporary or permanent exclusion and Home Rule within Home Rule. 

·  Carson was not afraid to threaten the ruin of the Home Rule Bill by illegal means, such as the setting up of a proposed alternative government, or by the force of arms, to effectively threaten civil war.

·  Carson was fortunate in that his cause won the support of a large section of the British establishment, in particular the Conservative Party, which he used effectively (see Curragh Mutiny).
·  Carson saw the advantage of being able to influence British politicians through his participation in the War Cabinet.

·  Redmond compromised from the start. While he dismissed partition he was willing to accept Home Rule within Home Rule. Such acceptance was seen as a weakness.

·  Redmond was unable to exercise control and authority and control over the entire Home Rule movement, in particular the Irish Volunteers. Such as failure was also seen as a weakness both from the outside and from within the Home Rule supporters.

·  Redmond’s advocacy of the traditional policy of Independent Opposition led him to exclude himself and his party from a position where they could influence political opinion within the War Cabinet, in effect denying himself the opportunity to oppose Carson’s influence.

·  Redmond was anxious was at all times anxious to prove to the British establishment that Ireland was deserving of Home Rule and such a move would not threaten Britain’s security. Such overt anxiousness was seen as a weakness.

·  In the end (to answer the question) we can only judge the effectiveness of leaders by the degree to which they succeeded in attaining their respective goals. Redmond failed to deliver on Home Rule for the entirety of the island and in so doing left the way open for more extreme nationalists who had a more separatist agenda. Carson also failed in that he did not succeed in keeping Ireland tied to the Union but he did play a huge role in preventing Home Rule and, although he was disappointed in it , the creation of the Protestant Unionist dominated state of Northern Ireland.
· 
The winner? Carson, by a whisker!

Labour

1. What were the problems facing Ireland’s urban poor and what attempts were made to solve them in the period to 1914? (2008)
2.  To what extent was the Dublin strike and lockout, 1913, a success or a failure? (2009)

3. What were the main social and economic developments in Belfast and/or Dublin during the period 1870-1914?        (2010) 
4.  How effectively did James Larkin seek improvements for   workers?   (2011)
Question 1

What were the problems facing Ireland’s urban poor and what attempts were made to solve them in the period to 1914? (2008) / What were the main social and economic developments in Belfast and/or Dublin during the period 1870-1914?        (2010) 
Problems

· Lack of manufacturing industry in south led to a dependence for employment in services (transport) and agriculture.

· In 1900, 30,000 out of a total of 40,000 working class men were casual unskilled labourers. Of this 30,000, 7000 were dockers or carriers.

· ‘Casual’ means that workers were employed on a day to day basis with no guarantee of work on successive days.

· The average weekly wage varied between 15 shillings and £1. Whereas the average minimum required to stay above the poverty line was estimated at £1 -2 shillings.

· There were implications to earning low wages. The first was in the context of housing. Because of poor earnings, 74% of  working class families lived in accommodation with no sanitation and no running water (Tenements). Because they paid such low rents, they were not entitled to vote in local elections. In 1913, only 38,000 people were eligible to vote of a population of 250,000. Poor housing meant increased incidences of Typhoid and Tuberculosis.

· Low wages impacted on the diet and a poor died increased the infant mortality rate. In 1900 the infant mortality rate was 142 per 1000 babies whereas it was 95 in the rest of the country.

· The focus of politicians was on the Home Rule question rather than the amoeleriation of social problems.

· Food prices increased by a third between 1895 and 1912 whereas wages declined due to high rates of unemployment.

· Over 59% of all wages was spent on food.

Attempts at a solution.

· Craft workers/ or skilled workers were able to improve their conditions by joining ‘Craft Unions’

· Craft Unions in turn joined the Trades Union Congress (TUC) which was founded in 1868.

· Irish craft unions felt that they were small fish in a very big pond and so formed their own organisation, the Irish Congress of Trades Unions. (ICTU)  In 1895 which eventually represented over 60,000 workers.

· James Connolly, a Scottish Socialist, came to Ireland in 1896 and set up the Irish Republican and Socialist Party to educate workers’ about their rights and strategies to attain same. However he got very little support and left for America.

· James Larkin came in 1907 to Belfast on the part of the National Union of Dock Labourers in order to recruit members from the Belfast shipyards. In May of that year, Larkin organised a number of ‘sympathetic’ strikes some of which were successful.

· Larkin came to Dublin in 1908 and quickly organised three strikes for which he was suspended by thee NUDL. In retaliation he formed The Irish Transport and General Workers Union.  He was later joined by James Connolly as an organiser.

· By 1912, the ITGWU had 18,000 members. They had been involved in a number of strikes or threatened strikes and won increases in some workers, pay often as much as 25%.

· The failure of the employers to deal with the ‘sympathetic’ strike made further concessions inevitable unless the employers could themselves organise and present a united front to combat the unions, and that is what happened in the months of 1913 and 1914.  

Confrontation

· Dublin Tramway workers had a number of grievances which led them to Larkin and the Transport union for help.

· Most drivers only worked and were paid for part time work but had to be available for work at all times.

· Drivers served on average of 6 years before they could be employed full time on regular wages.

· Drivers and Conductors were expected to work up to 12 hours per day and 365 days in the year.

· Their uniform costs, licences and insurance payments were deducted from their wages.

· Complaints by the public could lead to suspension or the removal from permanent to part time work.

· William Martin Murphy called a meeting at midnight of the 19th of July and warned his workers against joining the ITGWU. He had already sacked 6 workers earlier that day.

· On the 15th of August, he delivered a similar message to the dispatch workers at the Irish Independent. Forty men and twenty boys were fired. 

· The situation began to escalate when the workers at Eason’s, in sympathy with the sacked workers, refused to handle the Irish Independent and the tramway workers refused to carry it. Murphy retaliated by sacking over two hundred workers in the three companies.

· Larkin then called a strike of the tramway workers for Tuesday, August 26th, the beginning of the Horse Show. He further hoped to get the electricity workers in Ringsend to go out in sympathy.

· Murphy had the electricity station surrounded by RIC and this denied access to the ITGWU  so they were unable to talk to the electricity workers.

· With the trams having power to run, and only 200 of the 650 tram workers joining the strike, the impact if Larkin’s action was very limited.

· The End

· Murphy and the employers at all time refused to negotiate with Larkin so attempts at compromise were doomed from the start. The Home Rule Party were focussed on Home Rule and this was an unwelcome distraction so it was left to the British government to make the first move.

· Augustine Birrell, the Chief Secretary for Ireland set up a public inquiry. The Chairman was Sir George Askwith who was experienced in solving labour disputes along with a trade unionist and an employer.

· Larkin successfully showed how Irish wage rates were lower then their British counterparts and that Irish living conditions for working class families were very poor. He offered to end sympathetic strikes if the employers would recognise the ITGWU and that conciliation committees should be set up to settle disputes.

· Murphy conceded nothing and remained adamant in his abhorrence of the ITGWU and Larkin.

· The inquiry found that the Union was wrong in demanding sympathetic strikes and the Employers were wrong in refusing the workers the right to join the ITGWU. They recommended that conciliation committees be set up to settle disputes. This was accepted by Larkin but rejected by Murphy because he felt that Larkin was losing public favour in the aftermath of his appeal to the TUC and the ‘Dublin Kiddies Scheme’.
· Workers began to drift back to work, most got their jobs back on teh basis they worked alongside ‘free labour’. Others were forced to leave the ITGWU. Some 2000 remained unemployed as companies refused to take them back. None received a pay increase.

To what extent was the Dublin strike and lockout, 1913, a success or a failure? (2009) / How effectively did James Larkin seek improvements for   workers?   (2011)

· Larkin came to Dublin in 1908 and quickly organised three strikes for which he was suspended by thee NUDL. In retaliation he formed The Irish Transport and General Workers Union.  He was later joined by James Connolly as an organiser.

· By 1912, the ITGWU had 18,000 members. They had been involved in a number of strikes or threatened strikes and won increases in some workers, pay often as much as 25%.

Confrontation

· Dublin Tramway workers had a number of grievances which led them to Larkin and the Transport union for help.

· Most drivers only worked and were paid for part time work but had to be available for work at all times.

· Drivers served on average of 6 years before they could be employed full time on regular wages.

· Drivers and Conductors were expected to work uip to 12 hours per day and 365 days in the year.

· Their uniform costs, licences and insurance payments were deducted from their wages.

· Complaints by the public could lead to suspension or the remaoval from permanent to part time work.

· William Martin Murphy called a meeting at midnight of the 19th of July and warned his workers against joining the ITGWU. He had already sacked 6 workers earlier that day.

· On the 15th of August, he delivered a similar message to the dispatch workers at the Irish Independent. Forty men and twenty boys were fired. 

· The situation began to escalate when the workers at Eason’s, in sympathy with the sacked workers, refused to handle the Irish Independent and the tramway workers refused to carry it. Murphy retaliated by sacking over two hundred workers in the three companies.

· Larkin then called a strike of the tramway workers for Tuesday, August 26th, the beginning of the Horse Show. He further hoped to get the electricity workers in Ringsend to go out in sympathy.

· Murphy had the electricity station surrounded by RIC and this denied access to the ITGWU  so they were unable to talk to the electricity workers.

· With the trams having power to run, and only 200 of the 650 tram workers joining the strike, the impact if Larkin’s action was very ineffective.

The Strike.

· The strike was marked by a number of different elements, the first of which was the violence that ensued between the police and the strikers.

· Violence first ensued between the strikers and the strike breakers, Larkin and Connolly were arrested.

· ITGWU march planned for Sunday 31st August Sackville St was banned.

· Saturday, 30 August a protest meeting was held outside Liberty Hall. Police baton charged the meeting, one man was killed and another died later of his injuries. 300 were injured.

· Despite the ban, Larkin spoke from the Imperial Hotel, thereby provoking the police into attacking the hotel  melee.

· Strikers returning from a meeting in Marino heard about the rioting and proceeded to Sackville Street where the riot intensified.

· In all over 500 people were injured .

· The rioting and the press coverage given to it by British newspapers began to engender some support for the strikers. This was intensified when a tenement building collapsed killing 5 adults and 2 children even though the building had been declared ‘safe’ by the Corporation.

· The second element was the reaction of WM Murphy.

· Larkin persuaded the Employers Federation to take a united stand and asked employers to get their workers to sign a declaration to the effect that they would resign from the ITGWU and obey all instructions from their employer. (ie no sympathetic strikes.) In effect the employers locked out the workers who refused to sign. 

· Jacobs were the first firm to lock out over 2000workers. By the end of October 20,000 were locked out.

· The Employers Federation began using motor trucks to transport goods. (Trucks could carry 5 times the load of a horse and cart and were cheaper.)

· Employers used ‘Free Labour’, workers not members of the Transport Union who were out of work and who received no strike pay. (‘Blacklegs’ and ‘Scabs)

· Murphy sought help from the British based Shipping Federation which supplied free labour to strike bound employers. In November 1913 the Federation supplied 600 men and £10,000 to the Dublin employers to destroy the Union.

· A third element was the reaction of Larkin and the ITGWU

· As the supplies of food was disrupted in addition to the diminished capacity of the workers to buy food, soup kitchens were opened in Liberty Hall. (Constance Markievicz).

· Larkin appealed to Kier Hardie a prominent British Socialist and a member of Parliament and the TUC for support and aid.

· The Hare arrived in Dublin on Sept 28th with food enough for 9000 food parcels.

· By April 1914, the TUC had sent about £100,000 in aid to the ITGWU.

· On a suggestion by Dora Montefiore, a wealth feminist and socialist, the Dublin Kiddies Scheme was set up. The scheme was opposed by Archbishop Walsh who organised protests at railway stations and ferry ports.

· Larkin and Connolly closed Dublin port to all shipping on November 12th and appealed to TUC to ‘black’ all exports from Ireland.

· When Larkin was invited to U.K. to discuss options for a possible settlement, he went early to appeal to grassroots union supporters. In so doing he viciously attacked the leadership of the TUC and lost the support he was so anxious to court. As a consequence, the TUC rejected the use of sympathetic strikes and the British National Union of Railwaymen ordered their members in Dublin port to go back to work.

· The End

· Murphy and the employers at all time refused to negotiate with Larkin so attempts at compromise were doomed from the start. The Home Rule Party were focussed on Home Rule and this was an unwelcome distraction so it was left to the British government to make the first move.

· Augustine Birrell, the Chief Secretary for Ireland set up a public inquiry. The Chairman was Sir George Askwith who was experienced in solving labour disputes along with a trade unionist and an employer.

· Larkin successfully showed how Irish wage rates were lower then their British counterparts and that Irish living conditions for working class families were very poor. He offered to end sympathetic strikes if the employers would recognise the ITGWU and that conciliation committees should be set up to settle disputes.

· Murphy conceded nothing and remained adamant in his abhorrence of the ITGWU and Larkin.

· The inquiry found that the Union was wrong in demanding sympathetic strikes and the Employers were wrong in refusing the workers the right to join the ITGWU. They recommended that conciliation committees be set up to settle disputes. This was accepted by Larkin but rejected by Murphy because he felt that Larkin was losing public favour in the aftermath of his appeal to the TUC and the ‘Dublin Kiddies Scheme’.
· Workers began to drift back to work, most got their jobs back on teh basis they worked alongside ‘free labour’. Others were forced to leave the ITGWU. Some 2000 remained unemployed as companies refused to take them back. None received a pay increase.

· How successful.

· Larkin left for America leaving Connolly as leader of the ITGWU. And the Citizen Army.

· Many of those who remained unemployed, and many other besides opted to join the British Army and fight in the war.

· Employers were increasingly slow to lock out workers and workers were slow to use sympathetic strikes.

· The principle that one could join the union of one’s choice was firmly established.

· There was no material improvement in the working and living conditions of working class people in Dublin or anywhere in Ireland for that matter.

Land

1. To what extent did the land agitation of the period, 1870-1914, lead to land reform?  (2008)

2.  What was the contribution of Michael Davitt to social and political reform? (2007)

3. What did Charles Stewart Parnell contribute to land reform and to the development of the Home Rule movement?   (2010)    

To what extent did the land agitation of the period, 1870-1914, lead to land reform?  (2008)

Too assess the extent to which agitation led to reform it is necessary to look at the problems which existed before agitation and then examine the extent to which those problems were solved.

PROBLEMS

The relationship between landlord and tenant.
· There were approximately 20,000 landlords in late nineteenth century Ireland, but half the land was in the hands of 1000 landlords. 

· There were 600,000 tenant farmers and the average farm size was between 15 and 20 acres. 100,000 farmers farmed holdings of less than 15 acres.

· Prior to 1870 this relationship was a relationship of unequals. The law overwhelmingly favoured the landlord.
The cycle of economic depression.

· In periods of industrial growth in Britain (Industrial Revolution), demand for agricultural produce from Ireland was solid, prices were high and there was a demand for land to rent. Rents rose as prices rose, however when demand slackened, prices fell but rents remained high. 
· Another cycle came into play when harvests were poor or weather was bad. Tenants had committed themselves to rents which they could no longer afford when they had too little or too poor quality produce to sell.
· In the late 1870s and 1880s, a third element came into play with the increasing competition from places like Australia, Argentina and North America. These countries could sell more produce much cheaper in the British market. This had the effect of reducing prices to Irish farmers with a consequent inability on their part to pay their rent.
Other economic factors

· Small holdings, the average size was 15- 40 acres. 
· Inefficient production methods
· Cost of production was uncompetitive.

· Uneven, if not poor quality produce.

· Lack of investment .

SOLUTIONS

1870 Land Act

· Bright Clause. Loans for 35 years for 2/3 of purchase price. But one third difficult to raise, 35 years too short. Less than 1000 applied.
·  Terms of Ulster Custom legalised where it applied.
· Ulster Custom difficult to define in law. Tenants had to go to court to prove it existed for them.

1881 Land Act

· Courts set up to decide Fair Rent. Landlords or tenants could apply. Rents fixed for 15 years.

· Once rent paid, tenants could not be evicted. (Fixity of Tenure)
· Compensation to be paid for improvements. (Freedom of Sale)
· Loans for 35 years for 3/4 of purchase price.

Kilmainham Treaty See above.


1885 Land Act (Ashbourne)

· £5 million provided in loans to tenant farmers.
· Repayments generally lower than rents so 25,000 tenants availed of the Act.

· Another £5 million  provided in 1888.

1891 Land Act (Balfour)

· £33 million provided for land purchase.
· Landlords  to be paid in land bonds rather than cash. Not popular as land bonds fluctuated in value.
· Legal expenses too high

· 47,000 availed of terms of the Act.
· Act included Congested Districts Board.


Constructive Unionism

· Based on Joseph Chamberlain’s A Unionist Policy for Ireland.

· 1891 Congested Districts Board.


-  Congested Districts = large concentrations of small uneconomic holdings. Mainly in western counties.


-  Introduce better agricultural methods


-  Encourage alternative local industry, i.e. knitwear and weaving.


-  Build piers to facilitate fishing as an alternative source of income.


-  Encourage resettlement to areas where more and better land was available. By 1921, 2 million acres was redistributed among farmers.


-  Provide infrastructure to get produce to market, ie Tralee to Dingle railway.


The Co operative Movement

· Part of Constructive Unionism policy.
· Founded by Horace Plunkett.

· Solution to Ireland’s agricultural problems lay, not in purchase but in improved production quality, distribution and marketing, all of which could be achieved by cooperation.

· 1889 First cooperative – Doneraile, Co. Cork.

· 1894
Irish Agricultural Organisation Society founded, a national organisation of local cooperatives.
· Cooperative societies bought farming supplies like fertiliser and sold them at a discount to farmers.
· Mainly focussed on dairy industry. Little effect outside that.
· By 1914 there were over 1000 co-ops.
· Irish Homestead  founded in 1895 to promote ideas of co-operation.

Department of Agriculture and Technical Instruction

· Set up on advice of Plunkett.
· Aimed to educate Irish farmers to new and more efficient means of 
production.
· Aimed to improve quality of agricultural produce.

· Instructors employed to travel country and give classes on more scientific 
methods of farming, e.g. selective breeding.


1903 Land Act (Wyndham)

· £100 million made available for purchase
· Repayable over 69 years
· Legal costs paid by Government
· Landlords who sold their entire estate got a 12.5% bonus
· 200,000 tenants availed of the Act.

1909 Land Act (Birrell)

· More money made available under same terms as 1903 Act.
· Compulsory purchase was introduced.
Results 

· By 1914, 75% of occupiers were buying out their landlords.

· By 1908, 7 million acres had been sold under the Wyndham Land Act.

· In 1870 3% of rural dwellers were owners, this rose to 29.2 % in 1906 and 63.9% in 1916.

· Plunkett made the point that even if full peasant proprietorship was achieved and Home Rule implemented, rural underdevelopment would still have to be faced. 

In summary, both Liberal and Conservative policy effected a transformation in the area of land ownership but acute problems like rural poverty, small farm size, inefficient production, poor quality produce were to bedevil Irish agriculture well into the 1960s. In other words, the only difference for the majority of small farmers in Ireland after 1903 was that they owned the land which failed to provide an adequate living for them. 

What was the contribution of Michael Davitt to social and political reform? (2007)

Davitt and the Land Question


• 
Visited Mayo in 1879 - major economic crisis there - evictions rising 


• 
Organized a mass demonstration at Irishtown, Co. Mayo 


• 
Agreed to lead the Mayo Land movement which resulted in reduction of rents - first taste of success 


• 
Organised huge rally in Westport in June 1879 alongside Parnell 


• 
Formed the Irish national Land League October 1879 which became the greatest and most effective mass movement in all 1800’s  


• 
Primary weapon was moral force - mass demonstrations, boycotting …. 


• 
Davitt solution to land Question - Land Nationalisation i.e. State ownership of the land 


• 
Parnell solution - peasant ownership 


• 
Parnell solution proved to be more realistic and popular 

British reaction to mass movement of Davitt


• 
Coercion Act introduced - violence had increased in countryside 


• 
Davitt arrested and sent back to prison 


• 
1881 Land Act - attempt to appease tenants 


• 
Parnell also arrested and sent to Kilmainham 


• 
Kilmainham Treaty May 1882 - Parnell and Gladstone compromise 


• 
Davitt among the "suspects" released from jail immediately 


• 
Very critical of Parnell - felt the compromise was a mistake and that the small farmers of the west of Ireland had been cheated 


• 
Had hoped to continue the land agitation in order to get greater concessions  


• 
Land Nationalisation remained his ultimate solution to Land issue  bu received little support in Ireland and less in USA - seen as too radical 

Davitt in period 1882 -95


• 
Continued to support HR Party despite disagreements with Parnell 


• 
Strongly supported Parnell and the idea of a Liberal Alliance  


• 
Tried to put pressure on HR Party to take up concerns of working classes got absolutely no support from Parnell 


• 
Campaigned for Keir Hardie in Scotland (Ind. Labour Party) 


• 
Davitt also was key person in setting up the Irish Trade Union Congress 


• 
Founded a new weekly newspaper - The Labour World - London based 


• 
Davitt took anti-Parnell stance in the Divorce scandal 


• 
Elected anti-Parnell MP in 1892 until 1895 

Davitt and other issues 


• 
Very strongly opposed to the Boer War 


• 
Defended Jews in Russia and condemned anti-Semitism there 


• 
Critical of role of British Empire in India 


• 
Supported crofters on Scotland 


• 
Supported State funding for education but argued that schools must then be non-denominational - got harsh criticism from Catholic bishops 


• 
Took prominent part in 1906 General election - campaigned for newly formed labour Party candidates in London area and all over UK 

Assessment of place in history


• 
Has been called the "Father of the Land League" but his solution to the land Question was rejected by a majority of tenants and HR Party 


• 
Long-term policy of Land Nationalisation was too radical for a Irish tenants 


• 
Perhaps not having any direct experience of living on the land meant he had not developed a real instinctive sense of the problems of the land 


• 
Greatest achievement was in mobilising the masses in the Land War of 1879-81  


• 
Was a key figure in enlisting Irish American support because of his contact with John Devoy 

Is it true to say that the Conservative Party did more to solve the ‘Land Question’ in Ireland in the period 1870-1903 than the Liberals?


In order to answer this question it is first necessary to define the ‘Land Question’. The ‘Land Question’ entailed the relationship between the landlord and the tenant, the ownership of the land, farm size and poor quality produce. Both the liberals and the Conservatives parties brought about various changes in the issue of the “Land Question’ during the period 1870-1903.


The relationship between the landlord and the tenant was strained especially at times of economic downturn as rents were unaffordable and eviction rates were high. Tenants could be ‘tenants at will’ which meant that they could be evicted even if their rents was paid, a lessee, which entitled them to some rights provided their rents were paid or have the ‘Ulster custom’ which stated that there would be a fair rent, fixity of tenure and freedom of sale. At a time when agriculture was the sole source of income for most of the population, the landlords held most of the power. In 1870 Gladstone, leader of the Liberal Party, brought about a land act which legalised the Ulster Custom in places where it had already existed. It also contained a clause called the ‘Bright Clause’, which stated that if a tenant could afford one third of the cost of his farm, the British Government would pay the other two thirds. Although this act as a failure, only 800 tenants purchased their farms, the Bright Clause was hugely important in providing a stepping stone to greater reform.


In 1881, Gladstone passed a second land act. In this the Ulster Custom was legalised everywhere and land courts were established to set fair rents. There was another provision for tenants to buy their land, whereby they had to provide one quarter of the cost of their farms. However this act excluded tenants with arrears and leases. This act did not do much to change the state of affairs as the Ulster Custom was too vague and the fair rents were for far too long periods of time.


In 1885 the Conservatives came into power in England with the policy of ‘killing Home Rule with kindness. This involved a series of land acts which brought about reform in the Irish system. The first of these, the Ashbourne Act of 1885 provided 100% mortgage scheme whereby tenants could borrow the entire purchase price of their land and pay it back over a period of 49 years. This was quite successful with over 25,000 tenants purchasing their land. The Conservatives believed that only way to solve the problem of the relationship between the landlord and the tenant was to eliminate the landlord and so they brought about a series of reforms which allowed every tenant to become the owner of their own land. This element of the Conservative policy was a success. After the Balfour Land Act of 1891, 47,000 tenants purchased their land and by 1903 (the Wyndham Land Act) over 250,000 farmers owned their land and had 68 years to repay their loans. So although the Liberals came up with the idea of having tenants loans to purchase their land, it was under the Conservatives that this policy took great effect and it is therefore fair to say that the Conservatives did more to solve this issue of land purchase and the relationship between landlord and tenant.


However the issues of farm size and economic prosperity still remained. It was not enough to allow tenants to buy their own land, measures had to be put in place to help the farmers make a living from the land. Here again, the Conservatives brought about more reform than the Liberals, but their success was more limited.


The Congested Districts Board (CDB) was set up as part of the Balfour Act of 1891. This Board aimed to help farmers in congested districts to make a living from means other than the land. The CDB assisted the development of home industries such as knitting, weaving, set up fisheries and built piers, employed men in building rural housing and railways, eg, Dingle to Tralee and Cork to Skibbereen. It also bought large estates in Meath and moved more impoverished farmers to larger farms here. However the best the CDB could do was to provide a supplementary income, it could not eradicate the problems of farm size and poverty. The Conservatives also set up the Department of Agriculture and Technical Instruction which aimed to educate farmers in better farming techniques, eg selective breeding, but farmers were not willing to invest in their land so little improvement was made.


The Conservatives also supported the views of Sir Horace Plunkett and the Co-operative Movement. He proposed that small farmers should combine their resources in order to improve their economy, e.g., they set up creameries and aimed to eliminate the middleman that caused prices to be high and profit low. About 30 small cooperatives came together to form the IAOS, The Irish Agricultural Organisation Society, However despite the efforts of the Conservative Government the issues of farm size and prosperity were still major problems by 1903. However when compared to the progress made by the Liberals, the Conservatives did do more to improve conditions in Ireland and answer the ‘Land Question’.

Home Rule

2 Who was the more effective leader of the Home Rule movement, Butt or Parnell? Argue your case, referring to both. (2009)
3. What did Charles Stewart Parnell contribute to land reform and to the development of the Home Rule movement?       (2010)

4. What attempts were made to gain Home Rule, 1870-1886, and why were those attempts unsuccessful? (2011)

Who was the more effective leader of the Home Rule movement, Butt or Parnell? Argue your case, referring to both. (2009)
1. Home Rule and Isaac Butt.

a. Background, Act of Union etc

b. Home Government Association

c. Home Rule League
d. Home Rule Confederation of Great Britain.

e. Results of 1874 election (59/105)

f. Independent opposition

g. Obstructionism

h. Key Personality, assessment.
i. Party had no central organisation, constituencies were independent.

ii. Only 20-30 committed Home Rulers, the rest were on the bandwagon.

iii. Butt was a weak leader, did not impose discipline.

iv. Absent from Parliament frequently (debts)

v. Disapproving of obstructionism.

vi. Founded the party

vii. Formed the federal idea of Home Rule

viii. Laid the foundation for Parnell
2. Home Rule and C.S. Parnell 

a. Background

b. Obstructionism

c. The Home Rule Confederation of Great Britain.

d. The New Departure 
e. President of Land League

f. Leader Home Rule Party in 1880
g. The Kilmainham Treaty. (Land question effectively solved.)
h. Phoenix Park Murders

i. National League (NB. Contrast with Butt’s organisation of party)

i. Branch network

ii. Court Catholic Church support

iii. Collect money £60,000 between 1882-1885

iv. Selection conventions

v. Election organisation

vi. Party pledge.
j. Central Board Scheme rejected by Parnell
k. Parnell and the Liberals

l. Parnell and the Conservatives

m. The General Elections of 1885-86 (Case Study)

3. Home Rule and C.S. Parnell (b)

a. Parnell and the Plan of Campaign.

b. Parnell and Piggot forgeries.

c. O Shea divorce case

d. Parnell and the leadership of the Home Rule Party

e. The end.
4. Assessment

a. Created a united modern political party.

b. Persuaded the Liberals to support the idea of Home Rule.

c. Galvanised public support through the Land League.

d. Exploited the American connection.

e. Moral Force.

f. Believed in his own ‘myth’.

g. Bad judgement in Kitty O Shea affair.

      5. 
Butt or Parnell



    Although the federalist notion of Home Rule was attributed to Butt, his effectiveness as a leader capable on delivering on the idea was severely limited, (for reasons which are outlined above.) Parnell did galvanise public opinion to support Home Rule through his support of the Land League and through the New Departure. He was further able to play the ‘balance of power’ game because he had created a disciplined party and could deliver support when required. Finally, Butt was never able to convince British politicians to consider the idea while Parnell was able to bring the issue before the House of Commons on two occasions.

What did Charles Stewart Parnell contribute to land reform and to the development of the Home Rule movement?       (2010) (Candidates must deal with both elements of the question but not necessarily equally.)

1. Home Rule and C.S. Parnell 

a. Background

b. Obstructionism

c. The Home Rule Confederation of Great Britain.

d. The New Departure 
e. President of Land League

i. Moral force

ii. Boycott

f. Leader Home Rule Party in 1880

g. Land Act of1881

i. Terms

ii. Problems

iii. Parnell’s dilemma
h. The Kilmainham Treaty. (Land question effectively solved.)
i. Phoenix Park Murders

j. National League (NB. Contrast with Butt’s organisation of party)

i. Branch network

ii. Court Catholic Church support

iii. Collect money £60,000 between 1882-1885

iv. Party pledge.
k. Central Board Scheme rejected by Parnell
l. Parnell and the Liberals

m. Parnell and the Conservatives

n. The General Elections of 1885-86 (Case Study)

2. Home Rule and C.S. Parnell 
a. Parnell and the Plan of Campaign.

b. Parnell and Piggot forgeries.

c. O Shea divorce case

d. Parnell and the leadership of the Home Rule Party

3. Assessment

a. Created a united modern political party.

b. Persuaded the Liberals to support the idea of Home Rule.

c. Galvanised public support through the Land League.

d. Exploited the American connection.

e. Moral Force.

What attempts were made to gain Home Rule, 1870-1886, and why were those attempts unsuccessful? (2011)
1. Home Rule and Isaac Butt.

a. Background, Act of Union etc

b. Home Government Association

c. Home Ruled League
d. Home Rule Confederation of Great Britain.

e. Results of 1874 election (59/105)

f. Independent opposition

g. Obstructionism

h. Why did Butt fail?

i. Party had no central organisation, constituencies were independent.

ii. Only 20-30 committed Home Rulers, the rest were on the bandwagon.

iii. Butt was a weak leader, did not impose discipline.

iv. Absent from Parliament frequently (debts)

v. Disapproving of obstructionism.

vi. Founded the party

vii. Formed the federal idea of Home Rule

viii. Laid the foundation for Parnell
2. Home Rule and C.S. Parnell 

a. Background

b. Obstructionism

c. The Home Rule Confederation of Great Britain.

d. The New Departure 
e. President of Land League

f. Leader Home Rule Party in 1880
g. The Kilmainham Treaty. (Land question effectively solved.)
h. Phoenix Park Murders

i. National League (NB. Contrast with Butt’s organisation of party)

i. Branch network

ii. Court Catholic Church support

iii. Collect money £60,000 between 1882-1885

iv. Selection conventions

v. Election organisation

vi. Party pledge.
j. Central Board Scheme rejected by Parnell
k. Parnell and the Liberals

l. Parnell and the Conservatives

m. The General Elections of 1885-86 (Case Study)

3. Home Rule and C.S. Parnell (b)

a. Parnell and the Plan of Campaign.

b. Parnell and Piggot forgeries.

c. O Shea divorce case

d. Parnell and the leadership of the Home Rule Party

e. The end.
4. Why did Parnell fail?

a. Split in party lessened effectiveness.

b. Underestimated the Unionist – Conservative alliance.

c. Alienation of Joseph Chamberlain after the Central Board fiasco.

d. House of Lords.

e. The rise of the Unionist cause

 The following is added as a revision guide to other elements of the Home Rule question which, hitherto, have not been the subjects of questions. But there’s always a first time!

1. The Home Rule Party after Parnell


a. The Parnellites, led by John Redmond, held nine seats on average.

b. The anti-Parnellites, led by Justin Mc Carthy, held 72 seats. They were committed to the Liberal Alliance.
c. The Home Rule Bill of 1893

i. Differed slightly from the previous one.

ii. Passed the House of Commons but failed the House of Lords.

iii. Conservatives return to power, this is the main period of Killing Home Rule with Kindness.

d. Mc Carthy retired as leader of the anti Parnell faction and replaced by John Dillon, who defeated Timothy Healy who in turn set up another faction of the Home Rule Party.

e. The United Irish League
i. Set up by William O Brien in 1898, partly as means of commemorating the Rebellion of 1798 but mostly to persuade the government to buy out big landlords and distribute the land among smaller farmers. It proved a popular movement and crossed the traditional factions of the Home Rule Party.

ii. O Brien urged the factions to unite and eventually in 1900 the new united party choose Redmond as their leader, even though he was the leader of the smallest faction.
f. The Devolution Crisis. The ‘devolution’ suggestion came from a number of Southern Unionists, among whom were the Earl of Dunraven, and the then Under Secretary, Sir Anthony Mac Donnell. (who was coincidentally, a Catholic and an employee of the British Government). The proposal was very much similar to the scheme suggested by Chamberlain in 1885.The plan was repudiated by Redmond and Dillon and Wyndham, the Chief Secretary was forced to resign. The plan alarmed the Unionists in the North and as a consequence they set up the Ulster Unionist Council.
g. The return of the Liberals. The Liberals were returned in 1906 in a landslide, which meant that Redmond and the Irish Home Rulers could exert no influence. An additional reason for the lack of Liberal commitment was its inability to control the House of Lords. The Liberals did however propose an Irish Council Bill, again much the same as Chamberlain’s and Mac Donnell’s ideas. Redmond appeared to have been tempted to accept but fierce opposition from Ireland soon persuaded him to repudiate the proposal. 

h. General ElectionThe results were significant for Redmond and the Home Rule Party. Liberals 274

Conservatives 252

Unionists (Irish) 19

Labour 42

Home Rule 73

Healy Home Rule 11
i. The 1912 Home Rule Bill
j. The Buckingham palace Conference.

k. Redmond and the Irish National Volunteers Split in the Irish National Volunteers, The Woodenbridge speech.
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